
 Chester County Transportation Meeting January 17th, 2023  

 CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
      Tuesday, January 17th, 2023 at 5:30 PM  

R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex
 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 

CTC AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of CTC Minutes

a. November 7th, 2022 CTC Special Called Minutes.

3. Old Business

a. Update on TAP program regarding sidewalks. Bill Coleman.

b. Update on existing CTC contracts. Bill Coleman.

4. New Business

a. Approval of $461,000 of intersection work on Blaney Road, Kee Moore Drive, Secret Drive and
Rocky Creek Road. Bill Coleman.

b. Approval of Road Reimbursement for $ 20,604.83 for road materials to the Road department.

c. Approval of Sign Reimbursement for $13,794.73 for sign materials to the Recycling department.

5. Adjourn



                      Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting November 7th, 2022                        
 

 

                                SPECIAL CALLED                              
            CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE  

               Monday, November 7th, 2022 at 5:50 PM  
        R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers  
      

                                                                    

           Minutes  

Present:   Vice Chairman Branham, Councilman Jordan, Councilwoman Guy, Councilman Killian. Councilman 
Vaughn, Councilman Wilson, County Attorney Winters, and Clerk to Council Lee.  Absent:   Interim Chairman 
Dr. Frederick,       
 
 
1. Call to Order-Vice Chairman Branham called the meeting to order.  

2. Approval of CTC Minutes 

a. September 6th, 2022 CTC Minutes. 

Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson.  Vote was unanimous.  

  

3.     New Business 

        a. Approval of bid RFB 20-46.17 Chester CTC One-Time Money State Roads 2022-23 to LCI-Lineberger  

        Construction in the amount of $2,037,469.39 – Bill Coleman & Robert Hall. 

Mr. Coleman stated there was a technicality in the contract that needed to be cleared up before approval, 

he stated Dearborn turns into Republic. The technicality was Council should have approved at the time 

when they were approving the roads it should have been Dearborn/Republic that was his mistake. 

Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Killian. Vote was unanimous.  

 

         b.  Approval of bid RFB 22-54.03 Chester CTC 2023 Paving Program 21 Roads to Lynches River Contracting 

          in the amount of $2,113,054.50 – Bill Coleman & Robert Hall.  

          Mr. Coleman stated only 14 to 15 roads had been paved. Councilman Jordan stated his list had 17 

          roads and asked Mr. Robert Hall if that was correct. Mr. Hall said yes.  Councilman Jordan motioned to  

          approve 17 roads, second by Councilman Killian.  Vote was unanimous.  

 

  4.      Adjourn  
      Councilman Wilson motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote was unanimous.  
 



PROJECT # NAME OF PROJECT PROJECT ROADS STATUS
2046-7 Chester 2022 Paving Program Appalossa Ridge Road Paved

Barbers Creek Road Paved

Kati Lane Paved

Stacie Lane Paved

Winnie Hole Lane Paved

Heather Hill Drive Paved

Cessna Drive

Golden Maple Lane Paved

Hall Street Paved

Luscomb Drive

Old Pavilion Road

Oliphant Lake Road

Poverty Hollow Road

State Park Drive

Tate Drive Paved

Cedar Street Paved

2046-8 Chester CTC resurfacing Pilgrim Road (Eastern Half)

Minter Road S-778 SCDOT CMRB Completed

2046-16 Carlisle White Bridges Bridge repair on 2 Bridges Complete-final inspection 1-11-2023

2046-017 2022 CTC One Time Money State Roads Pilgrim Road (Western Half) S-840 Waiting on SCDOT CMRB

Hicklin Bridge Road S-325

Dearborn Street S-20/Republic S-62

Wright Street S-886

Lilly Street S-815

Henry Woods Street S-106 & 452

Torbit Street S-291

Chester CTC Contracts, Uncompleted, Updated 1-6-2023

Page 1 of 2



Chester CTC Contracts, Uncompleted, Updated 1-6-2023

2254-3 2022 CTC One Time County Roads Orrs Station Road

Kennington Street

Rice Street

Lockshire Street

Hopps Road

Lanksford Road

Cripple Creek Road

Bennett Road

Gaines Street

Connor Road (County portion)

Beacham Street

Sunshine Lane

Ballindam Road

Knollwood Drive

Pall Mall Road

Rippling Brooke Drive

Shoreview Drive

Page 2 of 2



$275,000.00

$125,000.00

$33,000.00

Add pipe to relieve area that has considerable water standing $28,000

$461,000

SCOPE OF WORK WITH COSTS

TOTAL

Replace pipe that has seperated and pave apron

Rocky Creek Road

Widen intersection so trucks will be able to make the turn into the industrial park

Rework main road to Rodman sports complex to include relocation entrance to be at 90 degrees

Secret Drive

Kee Moore intersection

Rodman Sports complex



N

$
$
$
d
a
t
e

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
p
a
t
h
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
f
il
e

n
a

m
e

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

FED. RD. SHEET
STATE COUNTY

DIV. NO. NO.

SC

   NO.
ROAD /  ROUTE

1

4

3

2

REV. NO. DATE DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONBY

5

6

7

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                        

                                                            

                                                            

PROJECT ID

           

                                    

CHESTER COUNTY

CHESTER       

PLAN SHEET

SCALE:   1" = 20'

WITH 8" CMRB.

2" TYPE C ASPHALT SURFACE

ALL NEW PAVEMENT TO BE

NOTE:

APPROX. 270 LF FROM BLANEY RD.

TIE TO EXISTING ROADWAY WIDTH

SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN 
RODMAN SPORTS COMPLEX ROAD

R
O

D
M

A
N
 S

P
O

R
T
S
 C

O
M

P
L
E

X
 R

O
A

D

1

APPLY 4" WHITE DASHED LANE LINE

EXISTING EOP

PROPOSED EOP

S-320 BLANEY ROAD

R1-1-30

1-3P-14'

APPLY 4" WHITE SKIPLINE

APPLY 24" STOP BAR

12' 12' 12'

ADD ASPHALT PAVING TO ENTRANCE ROADWAY

ADD ASPHALT PAVING TO ENTRANCE ROADWAY

REMOVE EXISTING PAVEMENT AND BASE

AND REGRADE DITCH

REMOVE EX. 15" RCP

APPLY 4" DOUBLE YELLOW

TRANSITION PAVING APPROX. 245 LF

XXXXXXXX

ROADWAY CENTERLINE

90 o

EXISTING EOP

EXISTING EOP

PROPOSED EOP

GRADE TO DRAIN

PLACE 60 LF OF 18" RCP



N

$
$
$
d
a
t
e

$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
p
a
t
h
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
f
il
e

n
a

m
e

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

FED. RD. SHEET
STATE COUNTY

DIV. NO. NO.

SC

   NO.
ROAD /  ROUTE

1

4

3

2

REV. NO. DATE DESCRIPTION OF REVISIONBY

5

6

7

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                                                            

                        

                                                            

                                                            

PROJECT ID

           

                                    

CHESTER COUNTY

CHESTER

PLAN SHEET

SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS DESIGN 
KEE MOORE DRIVE

SCALE:   1" = 20'

EXTEND 18" RCP 24 LF

ADD APPROX. 10' APRON TO DRIVEWAY

EXTENTS SHOWN. MILL A JOINT.

OVERLAY EXISTING APRON WITH 2" HMA TO 

ALL NEW PAVEMENT TO BE 12" IN DEPTH.

NOTE:

REAPPLY 24" STOP BAR SC - 9 (LANCASTER HWY)

KEE M
OORE D

RIV
E

APPLY 4" WHITE SKIPLINE

EX. 18" RCP

1

R1-1-30

1-3P-14'

APPLY CHEVRON PATTERN TO APRON











Chester County Council Meeting January 17th, 2023                                                 1 
 

 

     CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 

    R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                             1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 

                    Tuesday, January 17th, 2023 at 6:00 PM   
 

                 Agenda   
 

1.    Call to Order 

2.    Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3.    Approval of Minutes 
a. December 27th, 2022 Special Called Minutes. 

 b. January 3rd, 2023 Special Called Minutes.   
 
4.    Citizen’s Comments   

5.    Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

 a. 2023-1 Resolution to Gift Service Weapon to Billy Wayne Alley.  

 

b. 2023-2 A Resolution Committing Chester County (1) To Enter Into, Execute And Deliver A Fee Agreement With 

A Company Identified Under The Code Name “Project Phoenix22” Pursuant To Which Chester County Shall 

Covenant To Accept Certain Negotiated Fees In Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes; (2) To Ensure The Benefits Of A Multi-

County Industrial Or Business Park Be Made Available To Project Phoenix22; (3) To Provide Payments For Certain 

Investments In Infrastructure; And (4) Other Economic Development Incentives And Other Matters Related 

Thereto.  

c. 1st Reading of 2023-1  in Title Only An Ordinance Authorizing Chester County (1) To Enter Into, Execute And 

Deliver A Fee Agreement With A Company Identified Under The Code Name “Project Phoenix22” Pursuant To 

Which Chester County Shall Covenant To Accept Certain Negotiated Fees In Lieu Of Ad Valorem Taxes; (2) To 

Ensure The Benefits Of A Multi-County Industrial Or Business Park Be Made Available To Project Phoenix22; (3) To 

Provide Payments For Certain Investments In Infrastructure; And (4) Other Economic Development Incentives And 

Other Matters Related Thereto. 

d. 2023-3 Inducement Resolution Providing Preliminary Approval For Certain Incentives To Induce One Or More 

Investors Identified For The Time Being As Project Power, Each Acting For Itself, One Or More Current Or Future 

Affiliates, And Other Project Sponsors (Collectively, “Company”) To Establish Facilities In Chester County, South 

Carolina (“County”), Such Incentives To Include (1) A Negotiated Fee In Lieu Of Ad Valorem Tax Arrangements; (2) 

Special Source Revenue Credits; (3) Multi-County Industrial Or Business Park Arrangements; And (4) Other Related 

Matters. 

e. 1st Reading of 2023-2 An Ordinance Authorizing An Amendment To The Agreement For Development 

Of Joint County Industrial And Business Park (York And Chester Counties) To Enlarge The Boundaries Of 

The Joint County Industrial Park To Include Certain Real Property Located In Chester County; And Other 

Matters Related Thereto. 

 



Chester County Council Meeting January 17th, 2023                                                 2 
 

f. 1st Reading of 2023-3 An Ordinance Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee In Lieu Of Tax 

Agreement By And Between Chester County And [Project Power]; The Inclusion Of Certain Real Property 

Located In Chester County In A Multi-County Industrial Park; The Provision Of Credits Against Fee In Lieu 

Of Tax Payments; The Execution And Delivery Of Such Documents As May Be Necessary To Effect The Intent 

Of This Ordinance; And Other Matters Related Thereto. 

              g. 1st Reading of 2023-4 in Title Only An Ordinance To Repeal Chester County Code, Chapter 46, Streets,  
              Sidewalks, and other Public Property, Article VII, Acceptance of Streets, Section 46-202 Street Lighting.  
 
6.    Old Business  

 a.  Update regarding the Burnt House Meeting Cemetery- Neely Gaston.  

b. From CCTC:  

       1. Action taken regarding intersection work on Blaney Road, Kee Moore Drive, Secret Drive and  
           Rocky Creek Road. 
 

        2. Action taken regarding Road Reimbursement of $20,604.83 for road materials to the Road  
                          department. 
 

       3. Action taken regarding Sign Reimbursement of $13,794.73 for sign materials to the Recycling  
            department.  

 

c.   Update on the Chester County Airport Overlay. Attorney Winters.  

7.    New Business 

a. 1st Reading of CCMA22-24 Jeremiah Kibbey request Tax Map #101-00-00-099-000 at 2115 Great Falls 
Hwy, Blackstock, SC 29014 to be rezoned Rural 2 (R2) to General Residential District (RG-2). Planning 
Commission voted 5-0 to approve.  

 
b. 1st Reading of CCMA22-25 Luck Companies request a portion (7.8 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-005-
000 at 1207 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General 
Commercial District (GC). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 
c.  1st Reading of CCMA22-26 Luck Companies request a portion (1.82 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-005-
000 at 1207 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted 
Industrial District (ID-1). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 

d. 1st Reading of CCMA22-27 Luck Companies request a portion (48.89 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-008-

000 at 1113 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted 
Industrial District (ID-1). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 

e. 1st Reading of CCMA22-28 Luck Companies request a portion (17.92 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-008-
000 at 1113 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General 
Commercial District (GC). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve.  
 

f. 1st Reading of CCMA22-29 Luck Companies request Tax Map #088-00-00-054-000 off Mallard Creek Dr., 
Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Restricted Industrial District (ID-1) to Agricultural District (AG). 
Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 

 
 



Chester County Council Meeting January 17th, 2023                                                 3 
 

g. 1st Reading of CCMA22-30 Luck Companies request a portion (174.46 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-002-
000 at 1421 Collie Lane, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Industrial 
District (ID-3).  Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 

h. 1st Reading of CCMA22-31 Luck Companies request a portion (19.35 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-002-
000 at 1421 Collie Lane, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted 
Industrial District (ID-1). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 

i. 1st Reading of CCMA22-32 Luck Companies request Tax Map #089-00-00-025-000 off Lancaster Hwy, 
Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). Planning 
Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 
 

j. 1st Reading of CCMA22-33 Luck Companies request a portion (9.35 acres) of Tax Map #089-00-00-001-
000 at 1295 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District (R2) to Restricted 
Industrial District (ID-1). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 

 
k. 1st Reading of CCMA22-34 Luck Companies request a portion (1.01 acres) of Tax Map #089-  
00-00-001-000 at 1295 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two  
District (R2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). Planning Commission voted 5-0 to approve. 

 
l.  Council to consider approval of the 2023 Council & CTC meeting dates. County Council. 
 

8.    Boards and Commissions 

           a.  Councilmember Vaughn Appointments and Reappointments. 

  1.  Appointment to Accommodation Tax Commission. 

  2.  Reappointment to Tax Assessment Appeals Board. 

  3.  Reappointment to Zoning Board of Appeals.  

  4.  Reappointment to Rural Fire Commission.   

  5.  Appointment to Library Board.  

  6.  Reappointment to Planning Commission. 

  7.  Reappointment Parks and Recreation.  

  8.  Appointment to Hazel Pittman Board.  

           b.    Councilmember Mosley Appointments and Reappointments. 

  1.  Appointment to the Accommodation Tax Commission. 

  2.  Appointment to the Rural Fire Commission.   

  3.  Appointment to the Planning Commission. 

           c.   Councilmember Guy Appointments and Reappointments.  

  1. Reappointment to Accommodation Tax Commission. 

  2. Reappointment to Zoning Board of Appeals.  

 

 

 



Chester County Council Meeting January 17th, 2023                                                 4 
 

d.   Councilmember Agee Appointments and Reappointments.  

  1.  Appointment to the Accommodation Tax Commission. 

  2.  Reappointment to Zoning Board of Appeals.  

  3.  Appointment to Rural Fire Commission.   

  4.  Reappointment to the Library Board.  

  5.  Appointment to the Planning Commission. 

  6.  Appointment to Parks and Recreation. 

  7.  Reappointment to Hazel Pittman Board.  

 

9.      Executive Session 

 a.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 22109. Attorney Winters.  

 b.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 2298. Attorney Winters. 

 c.  To receive legal advice regarding Chester County Airport. Attorney Winters.   

 

10.    Council Actions Following Executive Session 

 a.  Action taken regarding Project 22109. 

 b.  Action taken regarding Project 2298. 

 c.  Action taken regarding Chester County Airport.  

 

11.    Council Comments 

12.    Adjourn 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. 
Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board 
at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

    

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

                                                                 Citizens Comments: 

• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes. 
 
                                                             Public Hearings: 

•  Each speaker will be limited to three minutes. 
 

                                                              When introduced: 

•   Approach the podium, state your name and address. 

•   Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed. 

•   Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council. 

•   Do not approach the Council table unless directed. 
 

                                                             Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

•  Use profanity 

•  Stray from the subject 

•  Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council 



               

 

  CHESTER COUNTY SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING 

    R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                               1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
                                Tuesday, December 27th 2022 at 9:00 AM 

 
                          MINUTES  

 

             Present: Vice Chairman Branham, Councilman Jordan, Councilwoman Guy, Councilman Wilson, Councilman Vaughn,  
             County Attorney Winters, and Clerk to Council Lee.  Councilman Killian arrived at 9:15 am. Absent: Interim Chairman  
             Frederick. 
 

       1.          Call to Order -Vice Chairman Branham called the meeting to order.  

       2.          Approval of Minutes 

        a.  December 12th, 2022 Special Called Minutes.  
              Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
         b.  December 8th, 2022 Special Called Minutes. 
               Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
         c.   December 5th, 2022 Council Minutes.  
               Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
       3.           Executive Session-Councilman Vaughn motioned to go to executive session, second by Councilman  

                      Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

          a.  To receive legal advice regarding Project 2269. Attorney Winters. 
                        b.  To receive legal advice regarding a potential MOU agreement with Chester County and Chester  
                              Wastewater Recovery. Attorney Winters. 
                        c.   To receive legal advice regarding the hiring of the County Administrator. Attorney Winters.  
  
       4.     Council Actions Following Executive Session-Councilwoman Guy motioned to go back to regular  

                        session, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 

                         a.  Action taken regarding Project 2269. Councilman Wilson motioned to allow Economic Development to 
                 continue negotiations with Project 2269, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
           b.  Action taken regarding a potential MOU agreement with Chester County and Chester Wastewater  
                              Recovery. Taken as information.  
 

   c.  Action taken regarding the hiring of the County Administrator. Councilman Jordan stated with the change  
        in government the chairman of council and the vice chair would be taking on additional duties and  
        motioned that Council approve to increase the chairman’s pay by $3000 dollars and the vice chair $1500,  
        second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
       5.          Adjourn-Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.  

                                      

 



CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING SPECIAL CALLED 

    R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex 
                             1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 

                           Tuesday, January 3rd, 2023 at 6:30 PM 
 

                         Minutes    
 

 

 

Present:  Vice Chairman Branham, Councilman Wilson, Councilman Vaughn, Councilman Killian, Councilman Guy, 
Councilwoman Mosley, Councilman Agee, County Attorney Winters and Clerk to Council Lee. 
 

1.          Call to Order-Vice Chairman Branham called the meeting to order.  

2.          Election of Chester County Council Chairman. 
              Councilman Agee nominated Councilwoman Mosley. Councilman Killian nominated Councilman  
              Branham. Vote was 5-2 to nominate Councilman Branham as Chairman.  
  
3.          Election of Chester County Council Vice Chairman. 
              Councilman Vaughn nominated Councilman Wilson. Councilman Guy nominated Councilman  
              Killian. Vote was 4-3 to nominate Councilman Wilson as Vice Chairman.  
 
4.          Adjourn-Councilman Wilson motioned to adjourn, second by Councilman Killian. Vote 7-0 to  
             adjourn.  
 



                                                                              Resolution 2023-1 
 

A RESOLUTION TO GIFT THE SERVICE WEAPON TO DIRECTOR BILLY WAYNE ALLEY 
 

WHEREAS, Chester County is grateful for the service given by Director Billy Wayne Alley for 
more than twenty-five years to the Chester County Sheriff’s Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws §23-1-255, Chester County 
Ordinance 11-16-098 and the Sheriff’s Office General Order #311, upon retirement, state law 
enforcement officers may retain their commissions in retired status with all rights and 
privileges, including the right to retain their service weapons issued while serving in active duty 
status provided certain requirements are met; and 
 
WHEREAS, the service weapon used by Director Billy Wayne Alley during his career with the 
Chester County Sheriff’s Office was a Glock 22, .40 caliber, Serial number XCF550. 
 
THEREFORE, the Chester County Council does hereby resolve to allow Director Billy Wayne 
Alley to retain the weapon used by Director Alley during his career with the Chester County 
Sheriff’s Office, provided he completes the requisite documentation for the transfer of this 
weapon.   
 
This County Council thanks Director Alley for his dedicated service to Chester County and 
wishes him well in his retirement. 
 
DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this  of January 17, 2023. 
 
 
     COUNTY COUNCIL OF CHESTER COUNTY 
 
     __________________________________________ 
     Joe Branham, Chairman, County Council 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk to County Council of Chester County 



49772611 v1

    INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION  Res # 2023-2 

A RESOLUTION COMMITTING CHESTER COUNTY (1) TO ENTER 
INTO, EXECUTE AND DELIVER A FEE AGREEMENT WITH A 
COMPANY IDENTIFIED UNDER THE CODE NAME “PROJECT 
PHOENIX22” PURSUANT TO WHICH CHESTER COUNTY SHALL 
COVENANT TO ACCEPT CERTAIN NEGOTIATED FEES IN LIEU OF 
AD VALOREM TAXES; (2) TO ENSURE THE BENEFITS OF A MULTI-
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS PARK BE MADE AVAILABLE 
TO PROJECT PHOENIX22; (3) TO PROVIDE PAYMENTS FOR 
CERTAIN INVESTMENTS IN INFRASTRUCTURE; AND (4) OTHER 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina, a political subdivision of the State of South 
Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its County Council (the “County Council”), is 
authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code (the “FILOT 
Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (the “Multi-County Park Act” or, as to Section 4-1-175 
thereof, and, by incorporation Section 4-29-68 of the Code, the “Special Source Act”) 
(collectively, the “Act”) and by Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution to: 
(i) to enter into agreements with qualifying industry to encourage investment and projects
constituting economic development property to which the industrial development of the State of
South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted by inducing new and existing manufacturing and
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State and thus utilize and employ manpower
and other resources of the State; and (ii) to covenant with such industry to accept certain payments
in lieu of ad valorem taxes (a “FILOT”) with respect to such investment (a “Fee Agreement”); and
(iii) to covenant with such industries to claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT
payments (“Special Source Credits”) to reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection
with infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real estate and personal
property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing or
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (“Special
Source Improvements”); and (iv) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-
county industrial or business park in order to afford certain enhanced income tax credits to such
investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; and

WHEREAS, the County is presently recruiting an investment in the County from a 
company based outside the State, which for purposes of confidentiality is identified for the time 
being as “Project Phoenix22”, together with any sponsor affiliate(s) (the “Sponsor”), intends to 
acquire, construct and install land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property constituting two new manufacturing 
facilities in the County and hire employees for its operations at the project site (collectively, the 
“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has informed the County that the Sponsor, expects to make new 
taxable real and personal property investments in the County at the Project of at least $363,300,000 
and expects to create approximately 180 net, new full-time jobs (with benefits) in connection 
therewith, all by December 31 of the eighth year after the first year which any portion of the Project 



2 
49772611 v1

is first placed in service, all in accordance with a Fee Agreement to be executed by the County, 
the Sponsor, which will contain, among other terms, certain terms set forth herein; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act 
and Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution (collectively, the “Multi-County 
Park Authority”), the County intends to cause the site on which the Project is or may be located, 
to be included in a multi-county industrial and business park (a “Park”) established by the County 
pursuant to a qualifying agreement with an adjoining South Carolina county (the “Park 
Agreement”) if the Project site is not already located in a Park; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined and found on the basis of the information supplied 
to it by the Sponsor and on the basis of relevant factors and criteria prescribed by law that the 
Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are defined in 
the FILOT Act, would meet all other requirements of the FILOT Act and would serve the purposes 
of the FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County has determined and found on the basis of the information supplied 
to it by the Sponsor that the Project would constitute an “enhanced investment,” as that term is 
defined in the FILOT Act; and 

WHEREAS, the County intends by this Resolution to commit to entering into a Fee 
Agreement under the FILOT Act and Multi-County Park Agreement under the Multi-County Park 
Act with the Sponsor in a form acceptable to the County and the Sponsor so that the Sponsor may 
proceed to qualify the Project for certain benefits under the FILOT Act, all as more fully described 
in this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the Sponsor recognize and acknowledge that the Sponsor 
would not otherwise locate the Project in the County but for the delivery of the incentives described 
herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council, as follows: 

Section 1. It is the intention of the County Council that this Resolution shall constitute 
an official action of the part of the County Council relating to identifying and inducing the Project 
under the FILOT Act. 

Section 2. Provided that the County and the Sponsor agree to the terms of, and sign, a 
Fee Agreement as provided under the FILOT Act in which the Sponsor commits to make a 
minimum investment of $150,000,000 in economic development property (the “Enhanced 
Investment”) within the 8-year investment period as provided under the FILOT Act (the 
“Investment Period”) and Sponsor commits to creating not less than one hundred twenty-five (125) 
new full-time jobs (with benefits) at the Project within the Investment Period (the “Job Creation 
Requirement”), the County Council hereby authorizes a FILOT for the Project for a period of forty 
(40) years to be reflected in a Fee Agreement containing, without limitation, the following terms:
(i) an assessment ratio on the Project’s economic development property not to exceed four percent
(4%); (ii) a fixed millage rate set at 488.4 mills; and (ii) the fair market value of the Project property
shall be determined by the South Carolina Department of Revenue in accordance with the FILOT
Act.  Should the Sponsor and/or the sponsor affiliate(s) fail to collectively invest at least
$150,000,000 or should the Sponsor and/or the sponsor affiliate(s) fail to create at least one
hundred twenty-five (125) net, new full-time jobs (with benefits) at the Project, both by the end of



3 
49772611 v1

the Investment Period, the Sponsor and/or the sponsor affiliate(s), at the County’s option, shall be 
liable for certain additional payments in accordance with the County’s customary practices. 

Section 3. Pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act, the County, 
subject to the limits set forth herein and pursuant to the Fee Agreement, will provide Special 
Source Credits against the FILOT payments by the Sponsor pursuant to the Park Agreement and/or 
the Fee Agreement, as the case may be, to reimburse the Sponsor related to the Special Source 
Improvements for the Project.  In these respects, the Sponsor shall be entitled to claim an annual 
Special Source Credits in years one (1) through five (5) equal to fifty-five percent (55%) of each 
year’s FILOT payments and in years six (6) through ten (10) equal to twenty-five percent (25%) 
of each year’s FILOT payments pursuant to the Park Agreement and/or Fee Agreement, with 
respect to the Project (that is, with respect to the investment made by the Sponsor and/or any 
sponsor affiliate(s) under the Fee Agreement during the Investment Period).  Should the Sponsor 
fail to meet the Enhanced Investment Requirement or the Jobs Creation Requirement by the end 
of the Investment Period, at the County’s option, and Special Source Credits otherwise payable 
under the Fee Agreement shall no longer be payable by the County and the Sponsor shall be liable 
for certain claw back payments in accordance with the County’s customary practices. 

Section 4. The County Council agrees to provide the Sponsor any and sponsor 
affiliate(s) with the most favorable provisions allowable under the FILOT Act including, but not 
limited to, the disposal and replacement of personal property. 

Section 5. The County Council agrees that it will adopt proceedings to place the 
Project sites, if not already so placed, in a Multi-County Park as provided in the Multi-County Park 
Act in connection with entering into a Fee Agreement under the FILOT Act but in no event later 
than December 31, 2023. 

Section 6. The authorization by the County of the Fee Agreement is subject to 
compliance by the County with the provisions of the Home Rule Act regarding the enactment of 
ordinances and shall not constitute a general obligation or indebtedness of the County nor a pledge 
of the full faith and credit or the taxing power of the County.  Further, the County will perform 
such other acts and adopt such other proceedings, consistent with this Resolution, as may be 
required to faithfully implement this Resolution and the Fee Agreement, in good faith and with 
reasonable diligence.  All commitments of the County hereunder are subject to the condition that 
the County and the Sponsor agree on mutually acceptable terms and conditions of all documents, 
the execution and delivery of which are contemplated by the provisions hereof, and the adoption 
by the County Council of an ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of such documents 
and approving the terms thereof.  If the parties enter into the Fee Agreement, each party shall 
perform such other acts and adopt such further proceedings as may be required to faithfully 
implement its undertakings pursuant to such agreements. 

Section 7. To the extent permitted by the FILOT Act, the County Council agrees to 
waive the recapitulation requirements set forth in the FILOT Act. 

Section 8. The County Council hereby agrees and authorizes the County Supervisor 
and/or the County Administrator in lieu of the County Supervisor, the County Attorney and the 
Director of the Chester County Economic Development Board along with any designees and 
agents any of these officials deems necessary and proper (each and “Authorized Individual”), to 
negotiate in good faith the final terms of the Fee Agreement, the Multi-County Park Agreement 



4 
49772611 v1

and any and all other agreements that may be necessary to effectuate the intent of this Resolution 
with the Sponsor. 

Section 9. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

Done in meeting duly assembled this 17th day of January, 2023. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By: __________________________________________ 
Joe Branham 
County Council Chairman /  
 
Chester County, South Carolina 

ATTEST: 

By: ________________________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 



1 
C:\NRPortbl\NPCHLT1\ASALEEBY\2316970_1.docx  

SOUTH CAROLINA     )   
)  A RESOLUTION 2023-3 

CHESTER COUNTY     ) 

PROVIDING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL FOR CERTAIN 
INCENTIVES TO INDUCE ONE OR MORE INVESTORS IDENTIFIED 
FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT POWER, EACH ACTING FOR 
ITSELF, ONE OR MORE CURRENT OR FUTURE AFFILIATES, AND 
OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS (COLLECTIVELY, “COMPANY”) TO 
ESTABLISH FACILITIES IN CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
(“COUNTY”), SUCH INCENTIVES TO INCLUDE (1) A NEGOTIATED 
FEE IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAX ARRANGEMENTS; (2) SPECIAL 
SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS; (3) MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR 
BUSINESS PARK ARRANGEMENTS; AND (4) OTHER RELATED 
MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), acting by and through its County Council 
(“Council”), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of Laws of 
South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (“Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 44 thereof 
(“Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (“Multi-County Park Act” or, as to Section 
4-1-175 thereof, and, by incorporation, Section 4-29-68 of the Code, “Special Source Act”) (collectively, 
“Act”), and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with 
certain investors to establish projects through which the economic development of the State of South 
Carolina (“State”) will be promoted and trade developed, thus utilizing and employing the manpower, 
agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant with such investors to accept certain 
fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments including, but not limited to, negotiated FILOT 
(“Negotiated FILOT”) payments, with respect to a project; and (iii) to permit investors to claim special 
source revenue credits against their FILOT payments (“Special Source Credits”) to reimburse such 
investors for expenditures in connection with certain infrastructure and other qualifying property related to 
a project; (iv) to create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business 
park to allow certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special 
Source Credits; 

WHEREAS, one or more investors identified for the time being as Project Power, each acting for itself, 
one or more current or future affiliates, and other project sponsors (collectively, “Company”) propose to 
invest in, or cause others to invest in, the establishment of certain facilities to be operated primarily for 
logistical operations, at one or more locations in the County (the “Project”), which the Company expects 
will result in aggregate investment of at least $110,000,000 in the Project; and 

WHEREAS, based solely on information supplied to it by the Company, the County has determined 
the Project would serve the purposes of the Act and would be directly and substantially beneficial to the 
County, the taxing entities of the County and the citizens and residents of the County due to the investment 
associated therewith, which contribute to the tax base and the economic welfare of the County, and, 
accordingly, the County wishes to induce the Company to undertake the Project by offering the Negotiated 
FILOT, Special Source Credits, and other incentives hereinafter described, subject, however, to final 
approval by ordinance of the Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council, as follows: 



2 

Section 1. As contemplated by Section 12-44-40(I) of the Negotiated FILOT Act, the County makes 
the following findings and determinations based solely on information provided by the Company: (a) the 
Project will constitute a “project” within the meaning of the Negotiated FILOT Act; (b) the Project, and the 
County’s actions herein, will serve the purposes of the Negotiated FILOT Act; (c) the Project is anticipated 
to benefit the general public welfare of the State and the County by providing services, employment, 
recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (d) the Project gives rise to no pecuniary 
liability of the County or incorporated municipality or a charge against its general credit or taxing power; 
(e) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (f) 
the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs. 

Section 2. Subject to the provisions of the Act and to final approval by the Council through adoption 
of an ordinance (“Approving Ordinance”), the Chairman of the Council and such other officials of the 
County as may be designated by such Approving Ordinance are hereby authorized, by and on behalf of the 
County, to enter into a fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement with the Company containing the terms 
and conditions summarized in the proposed term sheet appended hereto as Attachment A, as may be 
amended by the Approving Ordinance, which terms and conditions are incorporated herein by reference as 
if fully set forth herein, and such other terms and conditions as may be authorized by the Approving 
Ordinance.  Capitalized terms utilized in Attachment A and not otherwise defined therein shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this Resolution. 

Section 3. All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of such 
conflict hereby repealed. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force upon adoption by the Council. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



3 

RESOLVED: January   , 2023 

 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
By: __________________________________________ 
       Joe Branham, Chairman, County Council 
       Chester County, South Carolina 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 
 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
      Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
      Chester County, South Carolina 



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 
PRELIMINARY TERM SHEET* 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND INCENTIVE AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND ONE OR MORE INVESTORS 
IDENTIFIED FOR THE TIME BEING AS PROJECT POWER AND ONE OR MORE CURRENT OR 

FUTURE AFFILIATES OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS 
 
 

Company Commitments: $110,000,000 aggregate investment; compliance period ends 5 years from 
the “Commencement Date” as such term is defined in the Negotiated 
FILOT Act 

Basic FILOT Terms: 6% assessment ratio; 0.4536 fixed millage rate; initial investment period 
ends 5 years from the “Commencement Date” as such term is defined in 
the Negotiated FILOT Act; 30-year payment period for each annual 
increment of investment during investment period 

Multi-County Park: All property of Company in County to be designated as part of a multi-
county industrial or business park, to extent not already so designated 

SSRC*: Tiered SSRC of 40% for years 1-5 and 20% for years 6-10 against each 
FILOT payment for 10 consecutive tax years beginning with the second 
year in which a FILOT payment is due. 

 
*Terms set forth in this Attachment are summary in nature and shall be set forth in greater detail in the final 
fee in lieu of tax and incentive agreement. 
 



   

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-2 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
AGREEMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT OF JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
AND BUSINESS PARK (YORK AND CHESTER COUNTIES) TO ENLARGE 
THE BOUNDARIES OF THE JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PARK TO 
INCLUDE CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN CHESTER COUNTY; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, York County, South Carolina (“York County”) and Chester County, South 
Carolina (“Chester County,” collectively, “Counties,” each, a “County”) are authorized under 
Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-170 of the Code 
of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, “Act”) to jointly develop an 
industrial or business park within the geographical boundaries of one or more of the member 
Counties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as provided under the Act, to promote the economic welfare of their 
citizens, the Counties jointly developed the York-Chester Industrial Park (“Park”) and entered 
into the Master Agreement Governing the York-Chester Industrial Park between Chester County 
and York County dated December 31, 2012, which is attached as Exhibit A (“Park Agreement”), 
which governs the operation of the Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3 of the Park Agreement, Chester desires to enlarge the 
boundaries of the Park to include certain property, as described on Exhibit B (“Property”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL: 
 
 Section 1.   Enlargement of Park to Include Property. The Park’s boundaries are 
enlarged to include the Property in the Park, effective    , 2023.  The Chair of 
Chester County Council, or Vice Chair in the event the Chair is absent, the Chester County 
Administrator and the Clerk to Chester County Council are hereby authorized to take such 
further actions as may be necessary to complete the enlargement of the Park’s boundaries.  
Pursuant to the terms of the Park Agreement, the enlargement is complete upon (i) the adoption 
of this Ordinance by the Chester County Council and a companion ordinance by the York 
County Council and (ii) delivery by Chester County of a description of the Property to York 
County. 
 

Section 2.   Allocation of Park Revenue within Chester.  Pursuant to the terms of the 
Park Agreement, the revenue generated by property located in the Park, including the Property, 
and (i) received by York County from Chester County as the companion County to the Park, or 
(ii) retained by Chester County as the Host County following distribution to York County as the 
companion County to the Park (collectively, “Revenue”) shall be allocated pursuant to Section 7 
of the Park Agreement.  

 



   

Section 3.  Further Assurances.  The Chair, the Clerk and the Chester County 
Administrator (or their respective designees) are authorized to execute whatever other documents 
and take whatever further actions as may be necessary to effect the intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 4.   Severability.  If any part of this Ordinance is unenforceable, the remainder 

is unaffected. 
 
Section 5.   General Repealer.  Any ordinance, resolution or order, the terms of which 

conflict with this Ordinance, is, only to the extent of that conflict, repealed.  
 
Section 6.   Effective Date.  This Ordinance is effective after third and final reading.  
 

 
 
 

[End of Ordinance] 



   

 Enacted and approved in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ____________, 2023. 
 
    CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 
    By:  ________________________________    
            Joe Branham, Chairman, County Council 
            Chester County, South Carolina 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:   January 17, 2023 
Second Reading:  ___________ __, 2023 
Public Hearing:   ___________ __, 2023 
Third Reading:   ___________ __, 2023 
      
 



   

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

[Master Agreement Governing the York-Chester Industrial Park between Chester County and 
York County dated December 31, 2012] 

 
 



   

EXHIBIT B 
 

ADDITION TO EXHIBIT A (CHESTER) 
 
 
 

PROJECT NAME DESCRIPTION NOTES 
POWER  

TMS:  
               ACRES 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-3 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND 
BETWEEN CHESTER COUNTY AND [PROJECT POWER]; THE 
INCLUSION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED IN 
CHESTER COUNTY IN A MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL PARK; 
THE PROVISION OF CREDITS AGAINST FEE IN LIEU OF TAX 
PAYMENTS; THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF SUCH 
DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO EFFECT THE INTENT 
OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), acting by and through its County Council 
(“County Council”), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (“Code”), particularly Title 12, 
Chapter 44 thereof (“Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (“Multi-County Park 
Act” or, as to Section 4-1-175 thereof, and, by incorporation, Section 4-29-68 of the Code, “Special 
Source Act”) (collectively, “Act”), and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution: (i) 
to enter into agreements with certain investors to establish projects through which the economic 
development of the State of South Carolina (“State”) will be promoted and trade developed, thus utilizing 
and employing the manpower, agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to covenant 
with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments including, but not 
limited to, negotiated FILOT (“Negotiated FILOT”) payments, with respect to a project; and (iii) to 
permit investors to claim special source revenue credits against their FILOT payments (“Special Source 
Credits”) to reimburse such investors for expenditures in connection with certain infrastructure and other 
qualifying property related to a project (“Special Source Improvements”); (iv) to create, in conjunction 
with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business park to allow certain enhanced 
income tax credits to such investors and to facilitate the grant of Special Source Credits; 

WHEREAS, one or more investors identified for the time being as Project Power, each acting for 
itself, one or more current or future affiliates, and other project sponsors (collectively, “Company”) 
propose to invest in, or cause others to invest in, the establishment of certain facilities to be operated 
primarily for logistical operations, at one or more locations in the County (the “Project”), which the 
Company expects will result in aggregate investment of at least $110,000,000 in the Project; and 

WHEREAS, based solely on information provided to the County by the Company, the County has 
determined that the Project will subserve the purposes of the Act and has made certain findings pertaining 
thereto in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with such findings and determinations, and in order to induce the 
Company to locate the Project in the County, the County Council adopted a Resolution on [January 17, 
2023], whereby the County formally identified the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the Act, 
and, subject to certain conditions described therein, authorized County officials to provide the benefits of 
a negotiated FILOT, a multi-county industrial or business park, and Special Source Credits with respect to 
the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the Company have agreed to specific terms and conditions of such 
arrangements as set forth herein and in a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Incentive Agreement by and among the 
County and the Company with respect to the Project (“FILOT Agreement”), the form of which is 



 

2 
 

presented to this meeting, which Incentive Agreement is to be dated as of [           , 2023], or 
such other date as the parties may agree; and  

WHEREAS, it appears that the Incentive Agreement now before this meeting is in appropriate form 
and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council as follows: 

Section 1. Evaluation of the Project. Based solely on information provided by the Company, County 
Council has evaluated the Project on the following criteria and based upon the advice and assistance of 
the South Carolina Department of Commerce and the South Carolina Department of Revenue: 

(a) whether the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; 

(b) the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made; and 

(c) the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. 

Section 2. Findings by County Council. Based solely on information provided by and representations 
of the Company and the advice and assistance of the South Carolina Department of Commerce and the 
South Carolina Department of Revenue, as required, County Council hereby finds that: 

(a) the Project constitutes a “project” as that term is defined in the FILOT Act;  

(b) the Project will serve the purposes of the FILOT Act;  

(c) the investment by the Company in the project is anticipated to be approximately 
$110,000,000, to be invested within 5 years from the “Commencement Date” as such term is 
defined in the Negotiated FILOT Act; 

(d) the Project will be located entirely within the County; 

(e) the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; 

(f) the Project will not give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or any municipality nor 
a charge against its general credit or taxing power of the County or any municipality; 

(g) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public 
purposes; 

(h) the inducement of the location of the Project is of paramount importance; and 

(i) the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public. 

Section 3. Fee-in-Lieu of Taxes Arrangement. Pursuant to the authority of the Negotiated FILOT Act, the 
Project is designated as “economic development property” under the Negotiated FILOT Act and there is 
hereby authorized a fee-in-lieu of taxes arrangement with the Company which will provide Negotiated 
FILOT payments to be made with respect to the Project based upon a 6% assessment ratio and a fixed 
millage of rate of 453.6 mills, all as more fully set forth in the FILOT Agreement. 



 

3 
 

Section 4. Special Source Revenue Credits. As reimbursement to the Company for expenditures on 
Special Source Improvements, the County will provide to the Company Special Source Credits under the 
Special Source Act as set forth in the FILOT Agreement. 

Section 5. Execution of the FILOT Agreement. The form, terms and provisions of the FILOT 
Agreement presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk of the County Council be and hereby are 
approved, and all of the terms, provisions and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference as if such FILOT Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of the 
County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk of the County Council be and they are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver the FILOT Agreement in the 
name and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the FILOT Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company. The FILOT Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with any changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the County 
thereunder and as shall be approved by the County Attorney and the officials of the County executing the 
same, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of their approval of all changes therein 
from the form of FILOT Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 6. Inclusion of Project in Multi-County Park. The County will use its best efforts to ensure 
the Project is included, if not already included, and will remain, in the boundaries of a multi-county 
industrial or business park pursuant to the provisions of the Multi-County Park Act and Article VIII, 
Section 13 of the State Constitution, as set forth in the FILOT Agreement. 

Section 7. Miscellaneous. 

(a) The Chairman of the County Council, the County Administrator and all other appropriate officials of 
the County are hereby authorized to execute, deliver and receive any other agreements and documents as may 
be required by the County in order to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transactions authorized by 
this Ordinance;  

(b) This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South 
Carolina; 

(c) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon approval following third reading by the 
County Council; 

(d) The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable and if any section, phrase or 
provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, 
that declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions 
hereunder; and 

(e) All ordinances, resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of the conflict, 
hereby repealed. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



 

4 
 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
      
     By:        
      Joe Branham Chairman, County Council 
       Chester County, South Carolina 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
 
First Reading:   January 17, 2023 
Second Reading:    , 2023 
Public Hearing:     , 2023 
Third Reading:     , 2023 
 





Chester County Planning Commission Minutes 

December 20, 2022 

CCMA22-24 Jeremiah Kibbey requests Tax Map# 101-00-00-099-000 at 2115 Great Falls Hwy., 
Blackstock, SC 29014 to be rezoned from Rural 2 (R2) to General Residential District (RG-2). 

Jeremiah John Kibbey stated he lives at 2115 Great Falls Hwy., Blackstock, SC 29014 and his request 
is to rezone his property from R2 to RG-2 to allow another residence on the property which is just 
under 4 acres. His parents are getting older and having health problems and need his assistance. 

Vice Chairman Smith asked if anyone had any questions. There were none. Vice Chairman Smith 
motioned to approve, second by Commissioner Howell. Vote 5-0 Approved. 










































































































































































	1. 1-17-2023 CTC Agenda
	2. 11-7-2022 CCTC Special Called Minutes with signature
	3. CTC Contracts update 1-6-2023
	4. Intersection Roads
	Sheet1

	5. Reimbursement to Road Department
	6. Recycling Reimbursement
	7. 1-17-2023 Agenda
	8. 12-27-2022 Special Called Council Minutes
	9. 1-3-2023 Special Called Minutes
	10. 2023-1 Resolution To Gift Service Weapon to Wayne Alleyjw.v.2
	11. 2023-2  Chester County Inducement Resolution - Project Phoenix22 (12-28-2022)
	12. 2023-3 Inducement Resolution (Project Power)(Chester County)
	13. 2023-2 MCBP Ordinance - Chester County (Project Power)
	14. 2023-3 FILOT Ordinance - Chester County (Project Power)
	15. Street Lighting (2)
	16 . 22-24 _2023-01-13-100846336_Redacted
	17. 22-25_2023-01-13-100943603_Redacted
	18. 22-26_2023-01-13-101439759_Redacted
	19. 22-27_2023-01-13-103458338_Redacted
	20. 22-28_2023-01-13-103818857_Redacted



